




DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 1 of 3 – February 7, 2011 Village Board of Trustees – Regular Meeting  

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES; REGULAR MEETING 

Municipal Building:  874 Main Street, Antioch, IL  
February 7, 2011 

 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
  Mayor Hanson called the February 7, 2011 regular meeting before the Board of Trustees to 
order at 7:30 p.m. in the Municipal Building:  874 Main Street, Antioch, Illinois. 
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Mayor Hanson and the Village Board of Trustees led in the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
III. ROLL CALL 
 Following the Pledge of Allegiance, roll call indicated the following Trustees were present: 
Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. Also present were Mayor Hanson, Administrator Keim, 
Attorney Long and Clerk Rowe.  Absent:  Trustee Wolczyz.  
 
IV. MAYORAL REPORT 
 Mayor Hanson discussed the recent passing of Antioch Senior Council member Dorothy Otte 
who passed away on February 5, 2011.  He said that Dorothy served as president of the Council for the 
last eleven years and has been a member since 1995.  Mayor Hanson extended his sympathy to her 
friends and family and said they will be in our thoughts and prayers during this time.   
 
 1. Authentic Antioch $1000 Sweepstakes Winner – Mayor Hanson presented Sweepstakes 
winner, Joan Padbury of Antioch with the $1000 Chamber of Commerce certificates.  
 
 2.  Ratify Local Disaster Emergency Proclamation – Trustee Pierce moved, seconded by 
Trustee Jozwiak to ratify the declaration of the Local Disaster Emergency Proclamations expiring on 
February 7, 2011.  Upon roll call, the vote was: 
YES:  5: Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  1: Wolczyz. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
V. CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD  
 Stuart Malsch, Netherlands Drive resident, addressed the Board regarding the snow plowing 
efforts in his subdivision.  He said the whole subdivision, the Arbors of Windmill Creek, has only one 
lane for traffic and the post office won’t deliver the mail.  He asked for an update on the snow plowing 
schedules.  Mayor said that Administrator Keim will give a report later in the meeting.   
 
VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

Trustee Crosby moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak to approve the following consent agenda 
items as presented: 

1. Approval of the January 3, 2011 meeting minutes as presented. 
2. Approval of a Resolution authorizing a Special Event Liquor License to St. Peter’s Church for 

“Winter Whimsy” event being held on February 19, 2011 – Resolution No. 11-04. 
3. Approval of a Resolution Acknowledging Repaying in Full and Ahead of Time a Loan from the 

Dolly Spiering Fund – Resolution No. 11-05. 
4. Approval of a Resolution designating Joy McCarthy as IMRF Authorized Agent for the Village 

of Antioch – Resolution No. 11-06. 
5. Approval of Resolutions authorizing a Special Event Liquor License and Raffle License to 

Antioch Jr. Woman’s Club for their Comedy Night event being held on March 5, 2011 – 
Resolution No. 11-07 and Resolution No. 11-08. 

Upon roll call, the vote was: 
YES:  5:  Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  1: Wolczyz. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
VII. REGULAR BUSINESS 

6.  Approval of payment of the January 18, 2011 accounts payable as prepared by 
staff – Following a brief discussion, Trustee Pierce moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak to approve 
payment of the January 18, 3011 accounts payable as prepared by staff.  Upon roll call, the vote was: 
YES:  5:  Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  1: Wolczyz. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 2 of 3 – February 7, 2011 Village Board of Trustees – Regular Meeting  

7. Depot Street Road Improvement Presentation; Tim Hartnett, HRG Engineering – 
Consulting Engineer Tim Hartnett of HRG Engineering, presented the road improvement program for 
Depot Street.  He discussed the different alternatives that were more than the awarded grant funding 
and he then outlined Phase One and explained how it could be added to with future phases over time.  
He further explained this first phase would patch and pave Depot Street, shifting the center lane south to 
allow for a ten foot wide path along the north side.  Mr. Hartnett also discussed crosswalks, with 
possible flashing lights, being included by the school and a left turn lane for Osmond Park.  Mr. Hartnett 
said that he is looking for concurrence from the Board that they are on right track so they can finish bid 
documents and for an April bid opening and completion by this summer.  Board members said they 
were happy with the bike path recommendation and that safety is extremely important.  Following further 
discussion, Board members indicated their consensus for the project to move forward as discussed. 

 
8. Consideration of accounts payable as prepared by staff – Trustee Jozwiak moved, 

seconded by Trustee Crosby to approve payment of accounts payable as prepared by staff and in the 
amount of $447,669.81.  Upon roll call, the vote was: 
YES:  5:  Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  1: Wolczyz. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 

 
9. Consideration of a Resolution Approving 885 Civic Club Annual Carnival May 5-8, 

2011 – Trustee Sakas moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak to approve Resolution No. 11-09 
authorizing the 885 Civic Club to hold their annual carnival during May 5-8, 2011.  Upon roll call, the 
vote was: 
YES:  5: Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, Wolczyz and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  1: Wolczyz. 
THE MOTION CARRIED.    
 
 Trustee Crosby discussed Corporal Peck who is a wounded Marine from Antioch.  He said that 
Corporal Peck is expected to be in Antioch during the time of the Carnival and asked if there were a way 
to recognize him.  885 Civic Club members will discuss possibilities at their next meeting and will 
contact Trustee Crosby. 
  
 10. Consideration of a Resolution approving Antioch Chamber of Commerce 2011 
Events – Trustee Pierce moved, seconded by Trustee Crosby to approve Resolution No. 11-10 
authorizing the Chamber of Commerce list of 2011 events as presented.  Upon roll call, the vote was: 
YES:  5: Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  1: Wolczyz. 
THE MOTION CARRIED.   
 
VIII. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

Lake Michigan Water Allocation Update – Administrator Keim gave a brief update regarding 
the status of the Lake Michigan Water allocation.  He reported that we were granted allocation from 
IDNR as well as other communities in planning group. The planning group met last week to discuss the 
project and memorandum of understanding which is being revised.  Administrator Keim explained that 
May 31 is the deadline date to have the Memorandum of Understanding approved by the participating 
communities and that no action is needed tonight.  Trustee Jozwiak and Trustee Poulos will be 
attending the planning meetings with the next meeting scheduled on March 17. Administrator Keim will 
update the Board in March as more information becomes available. Mayor Hanson said that he does not 
want to alarm residents and explained this is a long process that would be taken to the voters for 
consideration. 

   
February 2011 Blizzard – Administrator Keim discussed the blizzard conditions and the State of 

Emergency on February 2, 2011.  He reported that dozens of motorists were stranded on Routes 173 
and Route 45 due to a jackknifed truck.  The Senior Center was opened as a warming center and first 
aide station.  The rate of the snow accumulation stressed the equipment and there were some 
equipment failures.  Administrator Keim reviewed the subdivisions that were impacted the most and that 
we hired contractors to help open those subdivisions.  He said so far, the costs currently tallied were 
$65,000 over our budget and the contractors were being discontinued today.  Administrator Keim said 
the public works department will continue to push back the snow, prioritizing subdivisions and safety 
areas working with any and all available equipment.  The crews will continue in 12-hour shifts until work 
is finished.  Administrator Keim applauded everyone’s efforts and teamwork during this extreme winter 
storm. Mayor Hanson and Board members said they appreciated staff’s dedication and their work is 
commendable.   

 
Walmart – Administrator Keim reported that Walmart Supercenter reopened Saturday around 

5:00 p.m.  He said that during the storm, Walmart had concerns about the snow load on the roof and 
hired a structural engineer to review it.  He said the structural engineer issued a letter stating that the 
roof structure was okay. 



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 3 of 3 – February 7, 2011 Village Board of Trustees – Regular Meeting  

IX. VILLAGE CLERK’S REPORT
 No report. 
   
X. TRUSTEE REPORTS  
 Trustee Pierce said the Environmental Commission met in January and will be meeting with 
members from Lake County and other communities to discuss their programs. 
 
 Trustee Sakas discussed the letter received from the Friends of Lake Antioch and would like this 
placed on a future meeting agenda.  He also reported there is a Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting on Thursday, February 10.  Trustee Sakas also complimented parks department staff for the 
great job on this year’s Daddy Daughter Date Night event.   
 
 Trustee Crosby asked how many cars were towed off of Main Street during the storm.  
Administrator Keim said that he was not aware of any cars being towed off of Main Street. Trustee 
Crosby asked about snow route and no parking signs along Main Street downtown. Trustee Crosby also 
discussed a recent meeting with Fox Lake’s Police Chief and Mayor and of his recent conversations with 
Corporal John Peck and said that he is doing a lot better he hopes that we have an opportunity to meet 
him. 
 
 Trustee Jozwiak said that staff has had budget meetings with the Administrator meeting with 
department directors.  He said that we should have an update next week.  
 
 Mayor Hanson read a section of the Village Code regarding the Village Administrator position 
and he discussed staff annual reviews.  He said that since the Village Administrator position is 
appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the Board of Trustees he felt it was important to have Board 
members participate in the Administrator performance evaluation.  He said that all but one Trustee 
participated in the evaluation and that he would insist that all participate in the future.  Trustee Pierce 
asked Attorney Long if there were any ramifications if a Board member does not participate in reviewing 
the Administrator position. Attorney Long responded there were no fines, penalty or codes that state he 
must participate in the evaluation.     
 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION      

Trustee Crosby moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak for the Mayor and Board of Trustees to go 
into executive session at 8:46 p.m. to discuss personnel, pending litigation and possible property 
acquisition.  Upon roll call, the vote was: 
YES:  5:  Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  1: Wolczyz. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 Trustee Poulos moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak for the Mayor and Board of Trustees to 
return from executive session to the open meeting at 10:15 p.m. with no action taken.  Upon roll call, 
the vote was: 
YES:  5: Pierce, Poulos, Sakas, Crosby, and Jozwiak. 
NO:  0. 
ABSENT:  1: Wolczyz. 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further discussion, Trustee Poulos moved, seconded by Trustee Jozwiak to 
adjourn the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees at 10:16 p.m. 
 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
       __________________________ 
       Candi L. Rowe, RMC/CMC 
       Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:  February 22, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 2 
  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Parks & Recreation  
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Resolution Authorizing the Village of Administrator to Execute an 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the Village of Antioch and Antioch School District 34 for 
Shared Facilities Use. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
Historically, there has been an understanding between Antioch School District #34 and the Village of 
Antioch that school facilities be made available for recreation programs. There has never been a formal 
agreement allowing the Village priority scheduling for the school facilities; the attached agreement 
formalizes this arrangement between the Village of Antioch and Antioch School District #34 and 
provides the administrator at each school procedural guidelines.  The agreement was negotiated 
between administrators, written by Antioch School District 34 legal council and reviewed by the Village 
Attorney. 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

1. Resolution 
2. Memorandum from Director Kudla 
3. Intergovernmental Agreement 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Move to approve a resolution authorizing the Village Administrator to execute an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the Village of Antioch and Antioch School District 34 for shared facilities use. 



 

  

 
RESOLUTION NO.  11- 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR TO 
EXECUTE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH AND ANTIOCH SCHOOL DISTRICT 34 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch (“Village”) is a municipality located in Lake 
County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, historically there has been an understanding between the Village of 
Antioch and Antioch School District 34 for use of school facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the attached Intergovernmental Agreement formalizes the 
scheduling procedures for use of school facilities; and   

WHEREAS, the agreement also provides the administrator at each school 
guidelines and procedures; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of 
the Village to authorize the Village Administrator to execute the Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the Village of Antioch and Antioch School District 34 for the shared 
use of facilities. 

PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of February 2011 
 
 
 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
 
 

      
 
 
 
            
      Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk 

















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:  February 22, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 3 
  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Parks & Recreation  
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Resolution Approving Village of Antioch Parks Department Financial 
Assistance/Scholarship Program. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
Parks Department staff and the Park Commission recently discussed the need for financial assistance so 
that families who meet certain criteria can afford to participate in the parks and recreation programs.  
This program would provide an opportunity for those families who are in need to provide recreational 
and educations programs for their children and would also provide partial assistance to those families 
who can pay fees if given additional time.  
  
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

1. Resolution 
2. Memorandum from Director Kudla 
3. Financial Assistance/Scholarship Application 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Move to approve a resolution authorizing the Village of Antioch Parks Department Financial Assistance 
Scholarship Program. 



 

  

 
RESOLUTION NO.  11- 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH PARKS AND 
RECREATION DEPARTMENT FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch (“Village”) is a municipality located in Lake 
County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, recently the Parks and Recreation Department staff and Park 
Commission discussed the need for financial assistance for families who cannot afford 
to send their children to recreational and educational programs through the Parks and 
Recreation department; and 

WHEREAS, the scholarship program also provides partial assistance for those 
families who can pay the fees if given additional time; and   

WHEREAS, the financial assistance / scholarship program will provide Village of 
Antioch families a way for their children participate in department programs; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of 
the Village adopt the Antioch Parks and Recreation Financial Assistance / Scholarship 
Program enabling families who meet certain criteria to participate in the Parks and 
Recreation programs at a reduced fee.  

PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of February 2011 
 
 
 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
 
 

      
 
 
            
      Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk 













 
 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD   February 22, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO:  4 
  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Finance  
 
 
SUBJECT:  Accounts Payable 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  $256,268.58  
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   

 
1. List of Accounts Payable for 02/22/2011 
2. Invoices over $10,000 – Informational Report 
3. Escrow Payable – Informational Report 
4. Manual Checks – Informational Report 

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 
Move to approve payment of accounts payable in the amount of $256,268.58 
 

























































 
 
 
 
 

Request For Board Action 

REFERRED TO BOARD:  February 22, 2011 AGENDA ITEM NO: 5 
  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT:  Administration      
 
 
SUBJECT:  Consideration of Resolution adopting Employee Policy 2.2 – Overtime Compensation  
                     Consideration of Resolution adopting Employee Policy 2.6 – Special Compensation 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND OF SUBJECT MATTER:  
From time to time, the Village must amend its personnel policy book to adapt to the needs of its 
employees, based upon individual incident, changes in employment law and or other circumstances 
requiring new policy and/or policy amendment. 
 
Overtime Compensation 
The current Overtime Policy has been revised to elucidate the definition of overtime for the purposes of 
calculating overtime eligibility.  
 
Special Compensation 
The current Policy Manual does not address Special Compensation, including compensation for 
emergent call out situations.  In accordance with the Federal Labor Standards Act (FLSA) overtime 
compensation eligibility is separate and distinct from Duty Assignment and Special Duty pay.  
Compensation for Duty Assignment and Special Duty Pay is not regulated by FLSA, but is at the 
discretion of the Village. 
 
Management is recommending creating a new policy to address Special Compensation eligibility. 
 
The issues were discussed at the September 15th and February 16th Committee of the Whole meetings. 
The Committee of the Whole recommended several changes and suggested the matter be placed on the 
February 22nd agenda for consideration. 
 
DOCUMENTS ATTACHED:   
 

1. Resolution  - Employee Policy 2.2 – Overtime Compensation 
2. Resolution -  Employee Policy 2.6 – Special Compensation 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
Move to approve a Resolutions adopting revisions to Employee Policy 2.2 – Overtime Compensation and 
to establish Employee Policy 2.6 – Special Compensation. 



 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 11- 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING REVISED EMPLOYEE  
POLICY 2.2 – Overtime Compensation 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch (“Village”) is a municipality located in Lake County, Illinois; 
and 

WHEREAS, at certain times updates and amendments must be made to the Village personnel 
policy; and 

WHEREAS, such amendments may be made based upon the needs of employees, individual 
incidents, changes in employment law, or other circumstances requiring new policy; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the current Overtime Compensation policy is to appropriately 
compensate overtime pay for non-exempt employees; and   

WHEREAS, the current Overtime Compensation policy has been revised to clarify the 
calculation of overtime eligibility; and  

WHEREAS, the current Overtime Compensation policy has been revised to provide examples of 
calculating overtime eligibility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the current Overtime Compensation policy has been revised to authorize the 

Village Administrator to make special exceptions to the Overtime Compensation Policy. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village to 
adopt Employee Policy 2.2 – Overtime Compensation. 

PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of February, 2011. 

 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
 
      
 
             
      Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk 



 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 11- 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING EMPLOYEE  
POLICY 2.6 – Special Compensation 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Antioch (“Village”) is a municipality located in Lake County, Illinois; 
and 

WHEREAS, at certain times updates and amendments must be made to the Village personnel 
policy; and 

WHEREAS, such amendments may be made based upon the needs of employees, individual 
incidents, changes in employment law, or other circumstances requiring new policy; and 

WHEREAS, there is no written policy for certain employees who work additional duties under 
special circumstances, and  

WHEREAS, these special circumstances may be unplanned, causing inconvenience to 
employees, and 

WHEREAS, a Special Compensation policy is established to provide all employees equitable 
compensation for duties performed outside of the normal compensation schedule.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Trustees of the Village, to 
adopt Employee Policy 2.6 – Special Compensation. 

PASSED and APPROVED this 22nd day of February, 2011. 

 

AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
 
      
 
             
      Lawrence M. Hanson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Candi L. Rowe, Village Clerk 



Village of Antioch  
 

Section:  2.2 
Title: Overtime Compensation  
 
 
Final Draft Date: 11/06/2006 
Adopted by: Ordinance 06-11-39   
 
Revision Approval Date: 
Approved by:  
 
 
Policy 
It is the policy of the Village to appropriately compensate overtime for non-
exempt employees.  All calculations of disbursement, either in the form of 
payment or compensation time, shall be done in accordance with the regulations 
of the Federal Labor Standards Act (FLSA).  
 
Eligibility 
All full time and part time Non-Exempt (hourly) Village employees excluding 
elected officials or any employees represented by a bargaining unit.   
 
Purpose 
Overtime is defined as any hours worked over 40 hours within a work week, and 
any hours worked in excess of 12 in a work day. Under usual circumstances, 
overtime shall be paid at a rate of one and a half times the employee’s normal 
hourly rate of pay.  
 
Compensatory time is defined as time off granted to an employee in 
compensation for hours worked over the employee’s regularly scheduled work 
week. Compensatory time shall be accrued at a rate of one and a half times the 
overtime hours worked.   
 
Procedures 
For the purposes of calculating overtime eligibility and/or compensatory time, the 
following will not count as hours worked: sick leave, vacation leave, paid/unpaid 
personal leave, bereavement leave, FMLA, personal days, holiday pay and/or 
any other type of leave in which the employee is not physically working.   
 
Any employee who uses any of the preceding leaves during the work week shall 
not receive time and one-half for the hours worked outside their regular schedule 
until such hours exceed the leave time used during that work week.   
 



Hours worked outside the regular schedule shall be paid at straight time until the 
leave time used during the work week is exceeded. For example, an hourly 
employee regularly scheduled to work six(6) eight-hour days within a given week 
would normally receive 40 hours at straight time and 8 hours at time and one-
half.  If an employee utilizes one day (8 hours) of vacation time during this given 
week, they would receive 48 hours of pay at a straight time rate.  This policy 
ensures that the 8 hours of vacation time would not be calculated at an overtime 
rate because, in this example, the employee only physically worked 40 hours.  
However, Special circumstances may require a pay calculation rate that is 
governed by the procedures of “Special Compensation” (see Section 2.6).   
 
Every attempt must be made to use compensatory time within the pay period in 
which it is accrued.  Employees may accumulate no more than 40 hours of 
compensatory time at any one time. The use of compensatory time must be 
scheduled with the approval of the immediate supervisor.  
 
Depending on the Village work needs, employees may be required to work 
overtime. Employees are required to work overtime when necessary and any 
employee’s unwillingness or refusal to do so may be cause for disciplinary action, 
up to and including dismissal. 
 
Exceptions 
At the discretion of the Village Administrator, a special exception to the overtime 
policy may be made for employees required to work on certain holidays, as is 
defined in Section 2.6 Special Compensation.  Any exception must be 
communicated with the Payroll Department in advance of the employee’s time 
sheet submission.   



Village of Antioch  
 

Section:  2.6 
Title: Special Compensation  
 
 
Final Draft Date: 2/18/2011 
Adopted by:  
 
Revision Approval Date: 
Approved by:  
 
 
Policy 
It is the policy of the Village to define and develop a special pay policy in order to 
provide all employees equitable compensation.  All calculations of disbursement, 
either in the form of payment or compensation time, shall be done in accordance 
with the regulations of the Federal Labor Standards Act (FLSA).  
 
Eligibility 
All full time and part time Non-Exempt Village employees, excluding elected 
officials or any employees represented by a bargaining unit.   
 
Purpose 
Special Compensation may be authorized for certain employees who work 
additional duties under special circumstances.  In some cases, these special 
circumstances may be unplanned, causing inconvenience to the employee, and 
therefore, will be compensated outside of the normal compensation schedule.  
Any special compensation must be approved by the department head and/or 
Village Administrator prior to the employee working the special circumstance.  
 
Procedures 
Special Compensation is defined and calculated under the following terms:  
 
Duty Assignment 
An employee given the assignment of “duty man” must be available outside of 
the normal workday to respond to call outs from Police dispatch or other sources.  
The employee must be in a state of readiness to work while on Duty Assignment.  
The employee will receive one hour of pay per day at a rate of time and one half 
while on Duty Assignment.   
 
Any calls that require action by the “duty man” will be compensated under Call-
Out pay (see example of Call-Out pay below).  In this definition, “action” refers to 
response outside of the compensated hour of Duty Assignment. If an employee 



passes their “duty” assignment on to another employee special compensation will 
be forfeited.   
 
Call-Out 
Call out is defined as any type of emergent situation which requires an employee 
to respond to duty outside of the normal working hours.  Call out is not scheduled 
in advanced and differs from Special Duty in that it can occur without notice.  
Call-Out is compensated at the rate of one and a half times the employee’s 
normal hourly rate of pay.  An example of call out pay would be an emergency 
water main break at midnight requiring immediate action from personnel outside 
of normal working hours.  
   
Special Duty  
Special Duty is defined as any scheduled special assignment that is deemed 
above and beyond an employee’s normal scheduled expectations.  For example, 
an employee may be eligible to receive special pay if required to work on a 
holiday such as the 4th of July.  Pre-scheduled snow plow duty during off-hours 
would also qualify as an example of Special Duty.  Special Duty is compensated 
at the rate of one and a half times the employee’s normal hourly rate of pay.  
Special Duty pay is calculated outside of the normal rules of overtime calculation.  
Special Duty pay is not contingent upon completion of working over 40 hours 
within a work week.  
 


	1 - 02-07-11 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	I.  CALL TO ORDER
	II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	III. ROLL CALL


